Board of Adjustment
Agenda Packet

August 15, 2019

Agenda Page 1 Updated 8/9/2019 11:57 AM



Currituck County Board of Adjustment August 15, 2019

Call to Order - 7:00 PM

A) Roll Call

B) Announce Quorum Being Met

C) Approval of Agenda

D) Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019

E) Ask for Disqualifications
Old Business

New Business

A) BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey: Jerry Lindsey with AAPCO &
Family Co. is requesting a variance on behalf of the property owner, Donald Pitts, for a
2 foot encroachment on the required 20 foot setback for a sun room addition built by
SolarTyme, a division of AAPCO. The subject property is located at 135 First View
Way, Tax Map 9E, Parcel 22, Moyock Township.

Announcements

Adjournment

Agenda Page 2 Updated 8/9/2019 11:57 AM



CURRITUCK COUNTY
NORTH CAROLINA

April 11, 2019
Minutes — Regular Meeting of the Board of Adjustment

CALL TO ORDER

The Board of Adjustment met in a regular session at 7:00 PM in the Board Meeting Room of the
Historic Courthouse, 153 Courthouse Road, Currituck, North Carolina.

A Oath of Office - Steven Craddock & Lynn Hicks

The agenda was amended to exclude this item since the Oath of Office for Steven Craddock
and Lynn Hicks was performed by the Clerk to the Board, Cheri Elliott (Notary), before the

meeting.
Attendee Name Title Status | Arrived
Cathy Bontemps Board Member Present
Troy Breathwaite Board Member Present
Steven Craddock Board Member Present
Gregory Hammer Board Member Absent
Lynn L. Hicks Board Member Present
Thom Roddy Board Member Present
Lauren Arizaga-Womble Board of Adjustment Attorney Present
Ike McRee County Attorney Present
Laurie LoCicero Planning Director Present
Cheri Elliott Clerk to the Board Present
Thomas H. Johnson, Jr. Attorney for Applicant, 85" and Sunny, LLC Present
Lauren E. Fussell Attorney for Applicant, 85" and Sunny, LLC Present
Thomas P. Nash, IV Attorney for Waterlily Protection Association Absent

Chairman Breathwaite called the meeting to order at 7:01 PM and asked the Clerk to the Board,
Cheri Elliott, to call roll.
B Announce Quorum Being Met

Chairman Breathwaite announced a quorum being met with four regular members present
and one alternate member present.

C. Approval of Agenda

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any necessary changes to the agenda
tonight.

Draft Minutes Page 1 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 3




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. Craddock motioned to amend the agenda by removing Section I. Call to Order, Item
A. Oath of Office since it was already performed before the meeting. Ms. Bontemps
seconded the motion and the motion carried unanimously.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

AYES: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member, Troy Breathwaite, Board Member, Steven
Craddock, Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member, Thom Roddy, Board
Member

ABSENT: Gregory Hammer, Board Member

D Approval of Minutes for January 10, 2019

Chairman Breathwaite asked if all board members have reviewed the minutes of January
10, 2019 and the board members in attendance nodded yes.

Chairman Breathwaite asked if there were any changes necessary to the meeting minutes.
Mr. Roddy motioned to approve the meeting minutes as presented. Mr. Craddock seconded
the motion and the motion carried unanimously.

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

AYES: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member, Troy Breathwaite, Board Member, Steven
Craddock, Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member, Thom Roddy, Board
Member

ABSENT: Gregory Hammer, Board Member

A. BOA Meeting Minutes January 10, 2019
E Ask for Disqualifications

Chairman Breathwaite referenced the State Government Ethics Act and asked if there were
any board members having a known conflict of interest with respect to the matter coming to
the board tonight. Mr. Craddock said he and his wife had stayed at the Hampton Lodge
Campground on April 29, 2016 for one night, but this would not have an influence on his
decision.

Lauren Arizaga-Womble also disclosed the law firm she works for, Twiford Law Firm,
had previously represented Mr. Pappas. She gave this discloser to Mr. Pappas and all
representing attorney's prior to the meeting without any objections from them. Ms.
Arizaga-Womble also consulted with the State Bar to confirm this was not a conflict of
interest.

OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business discussed.

NEW BUSINESS

Lauren Arizaga-Womble addressed the Waterlily Association's Motion to Intervene with
Thomas P. Nash, IV, Trimpi & Nash LLP, representing them. According to the Currituck County
Unified Development Ordinance (UDO), Mr. Nash may make this representation, but the

Draft Minutes Page 2 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 4




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

applicant reserves their right to objection relating to formal legal standing. Both Mr. Johnson
and Mr. Nash agreed to these terms.

Chairman Breathwaite swore in all participants for public hearing case BOA 19-02 Hampton
Lodge Campground.

A. BOA 19-02 Hampton Lodge Campground: Williams Mullen is appealing a Letter of
Interpretation dated January 7, 2019 on behalf of property owner 85 and Sunny,
LLC for a non-conforming campground located at 1631 Waterlily Road, Coinjock.

Chairman Breathwaite introduced the public hearing case.

Lauren Arizaga-Womble, the Board of Adjustment Attorney, presented a summary to the
board members. She reviewed the training board members received by the prior Board
of Adjustment Attorney, Ben Gallop, and reminded the board members that quasi-
judicial cases must be decided on the facts as they are represented by law which is the
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) and their decisions should not
be made according to opinions or feelings. Also, the evidence considered must be
under oath and must be relevant.

Ike McRee, Attorney for Currituck County, called his first witness. Laurie LoCicero,
Currituck County Planning and Community Development Director, took the stand and
Mr. McRee began his direct examination. Ms. LoCicero said an Interpretation
Application was received from 85' and Sunny, LLC dated August 30, 2018 asking for the
number of campsites that existed at Hampton Lodge Campground on January 1, 2013
and if modification to Hampton Lodge Campground shown on the applicant's site plan
submitted in the summer of 2018 are permitted.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero how she researched to find the history of Hampton Lodge
Campground from the beginning to present time in relation to all amended UDOs. Ms.
LoCicero said the first interactions between the County and Hampton Lodge Campground
was a septic permit issued May 1967 for a bath house, a septic permit issued June 1967 for
a trailer and a septic permit issued August 1969 for six camper spaces. On October 7,
1971, county-wide zoning was adopted that included the Hampton Lodge property. Under
this zoning ordinance and Official Zoning Map campgrounds were permitted in the
Recreational Residential (RR) Zoning District with the following requirements:
e A preliminary plat submitted to the Planning Board with each camp
application for tent sites and camping trailers
e Minimum 6 acres of land
e 3,000 square feet for each tent and camping trailer space
e 200’ setback for buildings, tent spaces or trailer spaces from any property line
maintained as a natural buffer
¢ Maximum 400’ distance for drinking water, toilet facilities
e Maximum 1500’ distance to wash-houses; does not apply where community
water and sewer connections are provided
e Campgrounds allowed in Flood Plain district with a conditional use permit
with the same regulations as above

Draft Minutes Page 3 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 5




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to find any documentation to show Hampton
Lodge Campground complied or submitted any of the October 1971 zoning ordinance
requirements and Ms. LoCicero responded she had not.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero upon these findings was Hampton Roads Campground
considered non-conforming in 1971 and Ms. LoCicero responded they were nonconforming
at the time.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to find anything else in your research and
Ms. LoCicero said she found Minutes from the March 20, 1973 meeting of the Currituck
County Board of Commissioners showing the Board of Commissioners discussed a request
by Action Development, Inc. for a sub-division plat for Hampton Lodge. The unrecorded
draft plat found in the county’s archive shows a camper subdivision that required installation
of certain infrastructure. The board determined that the camper subdivision plat would not
be approved until posting of a required bond and compliance with all other requirements and
procedures of the Currituck County Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances. Action
Development, Inc. did not complete the process required for approval of a camper
subdivision and no further action was taken on the Action Development, Inc. camper
subdivision application.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if that application or plat were ever approved and Ms.
LoCicero said the application was not approved, nor was the plat approved.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she recalled how many camper sites were shown on that
plat and she said well over 700 campsites.

Mr. McRee asked for the next items found in her research. Ms. LoCicero said numerous
septic permits were found for the time period governed by the 1971 Currituck County Zoning
Ordinance which were issued in April 1972, July 1972, August 1972 for total of 124 camper
spaces. Also, a septic permit was issued in May 1973. Ms. LoCicero said the next research
item she found was when the Currituck County Board of Commissioners enacted the 1975
Zoning Ordinance and Official Zoning Map effective date of January 1, 1975. Under the
1975 Zoning Ordinance, camping was a permitted use of property only in recreation
campgrounds located in the Recreational Residential (RR) Zoning District which Hampton
Lodge Campground was located within.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if there were any additional requirements to become a
conforming campground and Mr. LoCicero said there were the following conditions required:
e Minimum 10 acres under single ownership
e 3000 square feet per camper space
e 8% of total acreage be devoted to recreational area; 50% of that acreage be active
recreation

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if a conditional use permit was also required along with the
conditions and she said yes.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she had found anything in the records showing Hampton
Lodge Campground had applied for this conditional use permit. She said on October 29,
1975 a conditional use permit was issued for Hampton Lodge in a Currituck County Board of
Adjustment case. The Board of Adjustment case was started as an appeal of the Currituck
County Code Enforcement Officer's determination prohibiting the upgrade of twelve camp

Draft Minutes Page 4 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 6




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

sites. The minutes from the October 29, 1975 Board of Adjustment meeting recorded the
applicant wanted “to upgrade the twelve waterfront lots by addition of septic tank systems to
provide sewage disposal for those sites” at Hampton Lodge.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to determine, if any, action was taken by the
Board of Adjustment. She said they approved the twelve camp sites with a condition of a
required submission of a plat for the twelve camp sites to the Currituck County Code
Enforcement Officer and the twelve sites must be in conformity with the 1975 Zoning
Ordinance. Ms. LoCicero referenced that site plan on the PowerPoint Presentation and
showed the location of the campsites. She said they had determined at that time there
were 101 campsites by using the site plan that was provided by Hampton Lodge.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if there were any other issuance of building and septic
permits during this time frame of the 1975 Zoning Ordinance and Official Zoning Map. Ms.
LoCicero said a septic permit for a modular home was issued in 1978 and a building permit
for electrical service to fourteen campsites was issued in 1981.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if there was another updated Zoning Ordinance and Official
Zoning Map enacted by the Currituck County Board of Commissions. Ms. LoCicero said the
zoning ordinance was updated with an effective date of November 15, 1982. Under the
1982 Zoning Ordinance, the RR-30 Residential/Recreational Zoning District was created.
The RR-30 Zoning District was described as containing some existing camp grounds and
camper subdivisions and is retained for the purposes of regulating these existing uses and
is not intended that this district be expanded. Recreation campgrounds were still permitted
uses in the RR-30 district with a conditional use permit meeting the following conditions:

e Minimum 10 acres under single ownership

e 3000 square feet per camper space

o 8% of total acreage be devoted to recreational area; 50% of that acreage be active

recreation

Ms. LoCicero said there is no evidence in county archives that Hampton Lodge applied for
or received a conditional use permit under the 1982 Zoning Ordinance and for the time
period governed by the 1982 Zoning Regulations, there are records of the following building
and septic permits:

° September 1983: Building permit (#5625) rewire existing
campsites

° March 1984: Building permit (#0122) new 200 amp
service and rewire for 18 existing campsites

o June 1984: Building permit (#0362) new service at
existing campsites rewire 26 existing campsites

. December 1986: Building permit (#1981) electrical upgrade to

200 amp waterfront

Mr. McRee said the next Unified Development Ordinance was effective April 2, 1989 and
asked Ms. LoCicero if this is correct. Ms. LoCicero said that is correct. Mr. McRee asked
what was required for the campgrounds in this ordinance and Ms. LoCicero said a special
use permit was required and once again the Residential Recreation (RR) Zoning District was
designated in the UDO and described as “designed to provide for some existing
campgrounds and camper subdivisions and is retained for the purposes of regulating these
existing uses and it is not intended to be expanded" except in certain cases. On May 18,
1992, the purpose for the RR Zoning District was amended to provide that the RR Zoning

Draft Minutes Page 5 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 7




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

District was “not intended to be expanded except in cases where: a) and existing property
containing an RR designation is split by zoning lines; b) the expansion only occurs within lot
boundaries as such boundaries existed as of April 2, 1989; and, ¢) the campground/camper
subdivision shall meet all criteria established in Article 14 (Conditional and Special Uses) in
addition to not exceeding an overall maximum density of 4.5 unit (included campers and
motel room) and beds (included group sleeping quarters) per acre.” A use permit was
required with the following conditions:

e Minimum 10 acres under single ownership

e 3000 square feet per camper space

o 8% of total acreage be devoted to recreational area; 50% of that acreage be active

recreation

Ms. LoCicero said there is no evidence in county records that Hampton Lodge applied for or
received a use permit under the 1989 UDO. There was one building permit issued in
February 1990 for a 200 amp electrical service on A lots.

Mr. McRee asked about the next revision of the UDO in 1992 and Ms. LoCicero said it as
effective on November 16, 1992. The Residential Recreation (RR) Zoning District was a
designated zoning district created for the purpose of existing campgrounds and once again
was not intended for expansion and a special use permit with the following conditions:

e Minimum 10 acres under single ownership

e 3000 square feet per camper space

o 8% of total acreage be devoted to recreational area; 50% of that acreage be active

recreation

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to find an issuance of the required special
use permit. Ms. LoCicero said not for the required special use permit, but in April 1996
Hampton Lodge was issued a conditional use permit for an outdoor concert special event.
The Board of Commissioners action on the outdoor concert special event use permit was
the first consideration of a land development request, other than building and septic permits
for this property, since 1975.

Mr. McRee asked if this permit was for a land development use or something else. Ms.
LoCicero said it was for something else and it was a temporary use permit for the applicant
to hold an outdoor concert.

Mr. McRee asked if there was a map submitted with this application for the temporary use
permit for the concert and Ms. LoCicero said there was a site plan submitted that showed
234 campsites. She also said a zoning permit was also required for the special event and
the plan associated with the zoning permit application illustrated 90 vehicular parking
spaces for the event on a grassed area on the west side of the gravel road. Ms. LoCicero
showed the tent camping area that was illustrated on the site plan and said it was the only
area labeled as tent camping. Again in March 1997 another special event permit was
issued for the same similar use and that site plan illustrated 234 camp sites as well.

Mr. McRee asked for the next instance of a record for Hampton Lodge and Ms. LoCicero
said in January 1998 the Board of Adjustment issued a decision on an appeal of an
administrative decision regarding the property due to the Code Enforcement Officer
determining numerous additions were made to campers in violation of the UDO; the property
owner appealed that decision. In the record of the case, staff found a list of 32 campsites

Draft Minutes Page 6 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 8




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

that obtained permits for screened in porches. For the time period governed by the 1992
UDO, numerous septic repair permits were issued.

Ms. LoCicero said the next UDO was effective December 2007 with the same Residential
Recreation (RR) Zoning District not intended to be an expansion a designated zoning district
that was described as “not intended to be expanded except in certain cases. Private
campgrounds were permitted in the RR Zoning District with a special use permit and with
the following conditions:

e Minimum 10 acres under single ownership

e 3000 square feet per camper space

e 8% of total acreage be devoted to recreational area; 50% of that acreage be active

recreation
e Maximum camper size and platform requirements

The 2007 UDO also included language governing platted camper lots for existing camper
subdivisions. During the time governed by the 2007 UDO, Hampton Lodge did not make
application for any land development permits and there is no evidence that septic or building
permits were issued.

Mr. McRee asked if the UDO changed after 2007. Ms. LoCicero said it did effective date of
January 1, 2013. This UDO removed private campgrounds as a permitted use and the
Residential Recreation (RR) Zoning District was eliminated. All existing private
campgrounds became non-conforming uses and subject to a special section of the UDO.
As a private campground, Hampton Lodge became a legal non-conforming use subject to
the general and specific standards of Chapter 8 of the UDO.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to find at any time from 1971 until today that
Hampton Lodge Campground's property has ever been a conforming use and Ms. LoCicero
said no, since 1971 Hampton Lodge has never followed through with any action to make it
conforming to either the zoning ordinance or the Unified Development Ordinance.

Mr. McRee asked if Ms. LoCicero was able to determine the total number of camp sites
according to the electrical permits and/or septic system permits that were issued from 1967
to the present time from reviewing all the documentation. Ms. LoCicero said they
determined 190 camp sites through the total electrical and septic permits, but they had
increased the number to 234 campsites by using the site plans that were submitted for the
1996 and 1997 special event concert held on the property.

Mr. McRee asked if the tent site number could be determined and Ms. LoCicero said it could
not be determined since specific sites were never listed on any documentation showing the
3,000 square feet delineation for each tent site.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero if she was able to visit Hampton Lodge Campground and
asked for her description of the campground. Ms. LoCicero said she visited the
campground June 2018; the tent site area was designated with a single sign and the area
had a few picnic tables and water spigots spaced throughout. She said the location of the
area was the same as shown on the 1996 and 1997 site plan previously submitted by the
campground.

Ms. LoCicero concluded her witness testimony for the first question requested by the
Application for Interpretation made by 85' and Sunny, LLC, specifically the number of

Draft Minutes Page 7 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 9




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

campsites that existed at Hampton Lodge on January 1, 2013, per Section 8.2.6B of the
Currituck County Unified Development Ordinance (the 2013 UDO), saying, after reviewing
all documentation and making a site visit, she found the 1996 and 1997 site plans submitted
by Hampton Lodge Campground to have the correct number of 234 campsites and an area
permitted for tent campsites existed on January 1, 2013.

Mr. McRee asked Ms. LoCicero how she came to the conclusion of the second requested
guestion, specifically, "Are the modifications shown on the Sight Plan permitted under
Section 8.2.6.A(5) of the UDO?" on the Application for Interpretation made by 85' and
Sunny, LLC. Ms. LoCicero said she determined a building already needed to exist on the
property in order to be modified and additions could not be made such as swimming pools,
shack bars, etc. She made this decision based on the 2013 UDO and also by defining the
term "modification” by using Black's Law Dictionary and also Merriam-Webster's dictionary.
She said non-conforming uses are allowed to maintain their existing buildings, according to
the 2013 UDO, Section 8.2.1, to keep them in good working order provided the minor repair
does not extend, expand, or enlarge the non-conforming aspect. Although, Ms. LoCicero
said she did determine the existing facilities could be modified such as the restroom
facilities, piers, docks, bulkheads, camp store, and other recreation facilities; the new
facilities listed in the application, such as the new bathroom facilities, swimming pool, pool
house, etc., are not permitted. Mr. McRee had no further questions.

Chairman Breathwaite asked for questions from the board. He asked why Pier 8 was shown
as a non-conforming. Ms. LoCicero said it is a non-conforming structure because it didn't
exist before 2013; it was built after 2016 and was not permitted by CAMA. Mr. Craddock
asked if there has been an order to remove the pier and Ms. LoCicero said we had an order
for them to remove it, but the applicant included it in this appeal so the order was stayed for
any enforcement action, also, there was a violation made by CAMA and the property owner
came into compliance.

Mr. Roddy asked about the campground advertising as KOA and Ms. LoCicero said this is
the same campground.

Chairman Breathwaite asked for clarification on non-conforming uses and the purpose and
intent of Section 8 of the UDO. Ms. LoCicero said non-conforming uses do no not fit with
their neighboring areas; they can exist, but limits modifications and expansions. Ms.
Bontemps asked if it is the County's intent is to not have campgrounds. Ms. LoCicero said
that is the intent as of the 2013 UDO.

Chairman Breathwaite asked questions concerning the maps and the square footage of the
tent area. Ms. LoCicero said the hand drawn map has not been brought into scale, but they
believe the tent area to be approximately 3/4 acre said she will delineate a number of tent
sites bases on the 3,000 per square foot condition for each site in the designated tent area
as shown on the 1996/1997 maps.

Board discussion was held over Code Enforcement and why the campground never came
into compliance with the conditions of the UDO. Ms. LoCicero said she could not speak to
the past, but code enforcement is enforced under her tenure. She said, as of recent, code
enforcement is more proactive and not just complaint driven.

Draft Minutes Page 8 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 10




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. Hicks asked about violations in the water, such as piers and if the County had the
authority to inspect those issues. Ms. LoCicero said the County works with CAMA and they
give us the authority to inspect.

Ms. Arizaga-Womble instructed Chairman Breathwaite to give the applicant's attorneys time
to cross examine and then Mr. McRee will follow up.

Tom Johnson with Williams Mullen began his cross examination of Ms. LoCicero.

Mr. Johnson asked Ms. LoCicero to confirm that a non-conforming use is a use that may
have predated any zoning ordinance and still be allowed to remain in effect without issuance
of a violation. Ms. LoCicero confirmed his statement was true as a general rule as long as
no expansion occurred.

Mr. Johnson referenced the 2013 UDO, Section 8.1.1, and said this section says the
purpose and intent of this chapter is to regulate and limit the continued existence of those
uses, structures, lots of record, etc., but in 2013 the Board of Commissioners decided to
enact 8.2.6 Nonconforming Campgrounds. He verified with Ms. LoCicero that most
nonconforming uses do not have a special section within the UDO. He referenced A.(5)
within this section and stated "Modifications to existing campgrounds are permitted provided
the changes do not increase the nonconformity with respect to number of campsites that
existed on January 1, 2013." Ms. LoCicero confirmed this is how the ordinance reads. He
stated that Ms. LoCicero had used the term structure when referencing this section in her
Letter of Interpretation instead of campground and Ms. LoCicero confirmed his statement.
Mr. Johnson asked if Hampton Lodge had ever submitted any information to bring them into
compliance with the current or previous UDO and Ms. LoCicero said they had not. Mr.
Johnson also asked Ms. LoCicero about previous building permits, electrical permits and
septic permits and she confirmed they were issued.

Thomas Nash with Trimpi & Nash LLP introduced himself as the attorney for the Waterlily
Protection Association and began his cross examination of Ms. LoCicero.

Mr. Nash asked Ms. LoCicero if she had used the entire Chapter 8. Nonconformities of the
UDO to make her interpretation and not just section 8.2.6 Nonconforming Campgrounds.
Ms. LoCicero confirmed she had used the entire Chapter 8. Nonconformities for both the
general and specific sections. Mr. Nash gave an example of how the interpretation would
be incorrect if only using one section within the chapter and concluded his cross
examination.

Mr. McRee began his redirect examination of Ms. LoCicero.

Ms. LoCicero confirmed the number of campsites started at six in 1971 and expanded to
101 campsites by 1975. She said they are now at 234 campsites and never were brought
into conformity with the UDO.

Mr. Johnson began his recross examination of Ms. LoCicero.

Ms. LoCicero confirmed the 234 campsites were the campsites that use electric and septic,
but does not include the tent sites.

Draft Minutes Page 9 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 11




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. McRee introduced Exhibit 1 (County) - Board of Adjustment Agenda Packet - April 11,
2019 and Exhibit 2 (County) - Extracted Sections form 1971 Zoning Ordinance through 2013
Unified Development Ordinance (certified as true copies by Leeann Walton, Clerk to the
Board of Commissioners. Mr. Johnson allowed the introductions as evidence.

Mr. Johnson began his presentation and overview stating Williams Mullen was retained by
the Applicant in 2018 shortly after their purchase of the property to help determine the
number of campsites as of 2013 and help with the interpretation of UDO section 8.2.6.
Nonconforming Campgrounds. Mr. Johnson referenced Pier 8 and how CAMA had found
this and directed the County to look into it. He also said the Letter of Determination did not
state a number of tent sites. Mr. Johnson said their interpretation of UDO section 8.2.6.A.5
allows modification to existing campgrounds provided it does not increase the number of
campsites and they believe this does not apply to structures - meaning additional structures
built after 2013, not did not exist before are allowed. He said his clients are looking to
modernize the campground to make it more consistent with current campgrounds and that
would require building additional structures.

Mr. Johnson introduced three withesses: James Baeurle, Operator for 85" and Sunny LLC,
for knowledge of the intentions for the new campground; Warren Eadus, President of Quible
& Associates, for his work on maps for the campground; and Lucky Pappas, former owner of
Hampton Lodge Campground, owned the campground for over 40 years.

Mr. Johnson turned the presentation over to his associate, Lauren Fussell, for her
examination. Ms. Fussell called the first witness, James Baeurle, to the stand.

Mr. Baeurle said he is the Director of Development for Bluewater Development and has
been in the hospitality business for 30 years. He has developed six completed
campgrounds from Maine to North Carolina with the estimated size usually 400 to 500 RV
sites and 600 sites when including tent sites. Five campgrounds are currently under
development range from 500 to 900 campsites. He said they want to modernize Hampton
Lodge Campground. He explained the different options offered in their campgrounds
including seasonal 90 day maximum camping and short term for 2 to 3 days. He said they
have made a big clean-up to Hampton Lodge by removing campers that were staying there
illegally and removing old structures. He said they take pride in their campgrounds,
maintain a high standard for customer satisfaction and try to provide all the amenities that
modern campers want. Ms. Fussell referenced a photo of a bathhouse and asked Mr.
Baeurle for information on this. He said this is an example of one of our bathhouses we
provide and we try to locate them within 400 feet of all campsites. Ms. Fussell asked if they
have plans to increase the size of the current bathhouse on the property and Mr. Baeurle
said yes, in order to meet our standards the bathhouse needs to be larger. Mr. Baeurle said
they also want to install a pool that would only be accessible to campers only and research
shows a pool existed on the property in the 1950's and early 1960's. Ms. Fussell showed
pictures of two pools located at campgrounds owned by Bluewater Development. Mr.
Baeurle described the holding tank to be put onsite that would create water pressure and
would not deplete from the County Water. He also described a snack bar, care keeper's
cabin, etc. for future plans. He said they expect the acreage of Hampton Lodge
Campground to yield 600 campsites.

Chairman Breathwaite asked for questions from the board.

Draft Minutes Page 10 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 12




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Chairman Breathwaite asked Mr. Baeurle if he knew the number of visitors to the
campground in 2012 and he said he did not since there was limited financial information
from Mr. Pappas but they had interviewed people from the stargazers group and employees
of the campground that said there has been many times that 400 to 500 people were
camping there per one event. Other various questions were asked by the board members
concerning the expected number of campsites and the intent for the additional upgrades.

Mr. Roddy asked if Bluewater Development is KOA and Mr. Baeule said there is a
partnership and they had fully intended to operate as a KOA this season, but due to extent
of time between our request for a Letter of Determination in August and the receipt of the
Letter of Determination in January, we will not operate as a KOA this year. The intention is
to operate as a KOA next season. Mr. Roddy also asked if Mr. Baeule's interpretation of
UDO section 8.2.6. says you can build any amenity as long as it doesn't expand the number
of campsites and Mr. Baeule confirmed his statement.

Mr. Roddy asked Mr. Baeurle what number of campsites they would like determined. Mr.
Baeurle said we are looking for a determination of 280 to 700 campsites.

Due to the publics ongoing disruptions, the Board of Adjustment Attorney, Lauren Arizaga-
Womble requested the audience remain quiet during the meeting and she reminded the
Chairman of his authority to keep order in the boardroom.

Mr. Craddock asked Mr. Baeurle if the County had issued violations for illegal work
performed on the property and Mr. Baeurle said not to his knowledge. Mr. Craddock asked
if it is normal practice for a company to purchase a campground without knowledge of the
number of campsites. Mr. Baeurle said he looked at the 400 acres and with research, the
evidence was overwhelming that there was 280 to 700 campsites. Mr. Craddock asked if it
is normal business practice to purchase a campground that is nonconforming and Mr.
Baeurle said it is hard to find a campground that is not nonconforming any more so we are
used to dealing with this.

Mr. McRee began his cross-examination of Mr. Baeurle.

Mr. McRee asked Mr. Baeurle if he had spoken with the Planning Department and knew the
campground was nonconforming. Mr. Baeurle said yes and also saw 284 site hook-ups with
a site plan for 700 campsites.

Mr. McRee asked if the site plan was approved and Mr. Baeurle said no, but we believe
there was a bond.

Mr. Nash began his cross-examination of Mr. Baeurle.

Mr. Nash asked Mr. Baeurle if he believed as long as the number of campsites was not
increased that they could build anything on the property and if the additional bathrooms,
pools, etc. would not be an expansion. Mr. Baeurle did not directly answer the question.
Mr. Nash made several attempts to ask the question in different ways. Mr. Johnson objected
to the repetition and Chairman Breathwaite agreed the point has been made.

Chairman Breathwaite asked the board if there were any further questions.

Draft Minutes Page 11 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 13




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. Roddy noted a section of the UDO that states expanding acreage of a campground is
not allowed. Mr. Baeurle said they are not expanding the acreage.

Chairman Breathwaite said the UDO Section 8, has to be taken as a whole and you cannot
carve out a certain section. He noted section 8.2.3. Expansion and Enlargement and asked
Mr. Baeurle the difference between intensification of a campground and enlargement of a
campground. Mr. Baeurle said intensified is exceeding the number of campsites allowed as
of 2013.

Ms. Fussell began her re-direct examination of Mr. Baeule. She had Mr. Baeurle explain the
different types of camping included in rough tent camping. Mr. Baeurle said RV boondock
(camping without hook-ups) camping is included in their campgrounds. Mr. Baeurle also
said camping groups, such as the Stargazers, should to be able to camp in whatever area
provides the best view.

Chairman Breathwaite reminded all in attendance to be cordial with each other during the
hearing.

Ms. Fussell called her next witness, Warren Eadus, and began the direct examination.

Mr. Eadus said he is the President of Quible & Associates, a local engineering and
surveying firm in Currituck County. He is a Professional Geologist but has worked in current
job for 16 years since 2003 and has a four year degree with five years apprenticeship then
passing exams. His work duties include President of Quible & Associates, securing CAMA
permits, delineating wetlands, creating site plans, staff Geologist, etc. The company
averages 120 projects per year with 70 percent of the projects requiring site plans.

Ms. Fussell asked to tender Mr. Eadus as an expert witness in site plans. There were no
objections.

Mr. Eadus said the Hampton Lodge Campground property is 450 acres by the current
survey. He showed historical aerial photos from 1952, 1961, 1973 and 1977 that were
found as part of the environmental site assessment he conducted. Wetlands were
confirmed as part of the process. In the 1973 photo four roads were cut in the wooded
subdivision for the Woodall Subdivision Plat. If dividing all of the area by the 3,000 square ft
requirement, there are 766 campsites, but after taking out the wetlands, his conclusion is
408 RV sites and 50 tent sites. Mr. Eadus briefly described all maps and sketches in the
applicant's presentation Tabs 2 through 10 and how he came to his conclusion of 458
campsites.

Ms. Fussell requested Tabs 2 through 10 of their presentation to be submitted as Exhibit 1
(Applicant).

The board asked Mr. Eadus questions concerning the actual sites being used in 2012 and
various questions concerning the sites with utilities. Mr. Eadus said 250 sites have some
variation of water, sewer and electric. There is 25 existing septic systems with a also a
pump and haul tank that were still functioning with some systems installed in the 1970's or
before and should be replaced. He said the submittal made to Currituck County in June
2018 was for 314 RV sites and 78 tent sites.

Draft Minutes Page 12 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 14




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Chairman Breathwaite asked Mr. Eadus if it is safe to say the range for the final number of
campsites is between 234 and 314. Mr. Eadus agreed with the 234, but said the upper
number should be 458 as he had concluded from previous studies.

Mr. Craddock pointed out that the maps were never submitted for approval by the Board of
Commissioners and Mr. Eadus agreed. Mr. Craddock also pointed out the campground
would not have adequate fire protection with the 3 inch waterline. Mr. Eadus said a dry
hydrant using a pond or a tank could be used and hidden onsite.

Ms. Fussell called their third witness, John E. (Lucky) Pappas, the previous owner of
Hampton Lodge Campground to the stand.

Mr. Pappas said he purchased the property in 1974 with two partners. He lived in Virginia
and had Harvey Jamison managing the campground. Mr. Pappas said a site plan was
never recorded, but there were 252 hook-ups, not sites. He referenced Map, Tab 6, and
said it was not intended to be a site plan, but was a guide submitted for a special use permit.
He said there was a Blue Grass festival held with close to 400 camping units in attendance.
He referenced the illegal pier 8 and said the hunters repaired it without a permit and he
knew nothing about it. He said Stargazers have been coming for 25 years and staying in
the cedars.

Mr. Fussell referenced Tab 12, pictures of the tent camping area and Tab 11, receipts from
the Stargazers

The board asked Mr. Pappas questions concerning a site plan. Mr. Pappas said he never
submitted a site plan to the County and was never asked by the County to provide a plat.
Also, Mr. Pappas testified he visited the campground and counted 252 hook-ups shortly
before selling the campground.

Chairman Breathwaite called a 5 minute recess at 10:28 PM.
Chairman Breathwaite reopened the public hearing at 10:33 PM.

Ms. Fussell requested to enter Tab 11, Tab 12 and Tab 1 PowerPoint as Exhibit 2
(Applicant).

Thomas Nash, Attorney on behalf of the Waterlily Protection Association began his
presentation and called witness, Jim Market from Piney Island Road to the stand.

Mr. Market said he is a lifelong resident of Currituck County and has a workshop located
beside the gates to the campground. Throughout the years he visited the campground to
purchase items from the store. He also was hired by Mr. Jamison in 1985 to install a
bulkhead at the campground. He spent approximately one month working onsite. He said
all campsites located along the water were full. He never observed tent campers, but did
remember the sign.

The board members ask Mr. Market questions. Ms. Bontemps asked if he was aware of the
Woodall's trying to sell the campground with 700 campsites and he said no.

Mr. Johnson began his cross-examination of Mr. Market. He asked if he had a house
beside the campground and lived there full time. Mr. Market said he only had the workshop

Draft Minutes Page 13 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 15




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

at that location but was there seven days per week. Mr. Johnson also asked when he
installed the bulkhead and Mr. Market said it was in the summer.

Mr. Nash called his second witness, Judy Jones from Waterlily Road. She said she has
lived in Waterlily all her life and had used the store to purchase mild and bread through the
years. She said she does not recall any specific campsites, nor a pool, or a volleyball court,
etc. She said she has not observed any improvements made, but only deterioration of the
campground.

Mr. Johnson cross-examined Ms. Jones and asked where her house is located in proximity
of the campground. Ms. Jones said three miles south of the campground.

Mr. Nash called his third witness, Paul O'Neal from Waterlily Road. He asked him the
proximity of his house to the campground and Mr. O'Neal said three miles south of the
campground. Mr. O'Neal has lived in the area for 50 years. He would go to the
campground store to buy ice cream. Mr. Harvey hired him in the fall of 1980 to spade the
campsites. He said in his opinion, there were 175 to 200 camp sites in 1980. He said there
was a store, restroom, recreation hall and a house at the gate. He remembers the sign for
the tents camping area. Mr. O'Neal said he was a member of the Board of Commissioners
from 1994 until 2006 and from 2008 until 2016; during these times he served as the
Chairman many times. While serving on the Board of Commissioners, he visited the
campground 1995-1996 due to zoning citing the campground for illegal structures attached
to the campers. Mr. Nash asked Mr. O'Neal if the campground had changed from the
1980's and he said it had not. Mr. Nash asked about the process in 2013 when the Board of
Commissions made campgrounds nonconforming. Mr. O'Neal said the Planning Board
passed it unanimously without any objections from the public and that the Board of
Commissions passed it unanimously without any objections from the public. The public
hearing was advertised according to NC General Statues. Mr. O'Neal said campgrounds
along with mobile home parks, junkyards and billboards have all been made nonconforming
with the purpose for the uses to go away. Mr. O'Neal said the entire UDO Chapter 8 applies
to nonconforming campgrounds and not just section 8.2.6. He said in early 2017 a
representative of Bluewater approached him to facilitate a community meeting. Bluewater
acknowledged the 234 campsites, but said they needed more to make the business work.
The public was against this and they took it to the Planning Board anyways asking for more
than the acknowledged 234 sites and they were denied. Mr. Nash showed GIS Maps of the
campground throughout the years and asked Mr. O'Neal to describe them. Mr. O'Neal said
it was aerial maps of the campground showing it has not changed.

The board asked Mr. O'Neal questions. Mr. Roddy said the campers looked the same in all
the aerial photos and Mr. O'Neal said because most of them were permanent campers with
people staying year round. Ms. Bontemps asked why the County voted to do away with
campgrounds and Mr. O'Neal said because the County was having trouble with zoning
violations, people living there year round and the roads to the campground are in bad
condition; there were health and safety issues. Ms. Bontemps voiced her concern over the
County taking away a family area.

Mr. Johnson cross-examined Mr. O'Neal and referenced the UDO section 8.2.6 A.(5). Mr.
O'Neal said this section is not exclusive, but inclusive and you must take the whole Chapter
8 in account. Mr. Johnson asked about the community meeting and asked if the number of
campsites was actually 250 site hook-ups and not 234 campsites. Mr. O'Neal said he did
not recall, but does recall the number requested was 450 which is what you are asking for

Draft Minutes Page 14 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 16




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

now. Mr. Johnson asked what time of year the aerials were taken and Mr. O'Neal said he
did not know.

Mr. Nash asked to have the GIS aerial photos entered as evidence. Mr. Johnson objected
and based his objection on not knowing the time of year the photos were taken. The
Chairman agreed with Mr. Johnson, but asked for advice from the Board of Adjustment
Attorney, Lauren Arizaga-Womble. Chairman Breathwaite decided to allow the evidence
with a weight of caution since the seasonal dates of the photos were not known. Mr.
Nash entered the Hampton Lodge Campground Aerial Photos Over Time as Exhibit 1
(Waterlily).

Chairman Breathwaite opened the hearing to public comment.

Jacklyn Myers from Waterlily Road came before the board. Ms. Myers said the
campground was so packed that at times the No Vacancy sign was on the gate. She
said there are 250 to 300 campsites including the tent area and it was very well run by
Uncle Harvey.

Brian Rudo from Waterlily Road came before the board and said he had seen buses run
off the road into the water. Mr. Johnson objected to this testimony and said it was not
relevant. Ms. Arizaga-Womble said this is a public comment period and the citizens are
not under oath. She asked the public comments to be on the two issues at hand which
are the number of campsites and your opinion about the interpretation of modification.
Chairman Breathwaite sustained the objection. Ms. Arizaga-Womble reminded the
board to only consider the sworn competent testimony and the public comment should
have no bearing on their decision. Two more citizens commented on intensification of
the campground causing traffic issues.

Chairman Breathwaite closed the public hearing at 11:19 PM. Ms. Arizaga-Womble
allowed Mr. Johnson, Mr. McRee and Mr. Nash to make their closing statements.

Discussion by the board was held over taking the UDO Chapter 8 as a whole and
considering the facts. Ms. Arizaga-Womble reminded the board about applying the law
to the facts and not just feelings.

Mr. Craddock motioned that the Board of Adjustment affirms the determination by Ms.
Laurie LoCicero based on findings of facts that there have been no additional plats
submitted to the County of Currituck that show any different than 234 lots and that
according to the evidence applied by the applicant on tab 6, tab 7 and tab 8 that these
are hypothesized lots that have never been actually recorded and approved by the
Currituck County Board of Commissioners at any time in the past and that Ms. LoCicero
did not make an error or incorrectly determine the number of lots that are existing on
January 1, 2013.

Mr. Roddy seconded the motion and the motion concerning the number of campsites
carried unanimously.

Ms. Arizaga-Womble asked Mr. Craddock to make a second motion to address the
second item, modification.

Draft Minutes Page 15 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 17




Currituck County Board of Adjustment April 11, 2019

Mr. Craddock motioned to affirm the determination of Laurie LoCicero in regards to
modifications based on the findings of fact that Chapter 8 of the UDO in regards to
nonconformity is general and specific and that any modifications other than basic
repairs, routine maintenance in accordance with the requirements of that chapter as a
means of preserving safety and appearance would be unlawful if they were different
than what is in section 8.1.2.

Mr. Roddy seconded the motion.

Mr. Johnson asked for clarification on the second motion concerning modification and
asks if Mr. Craddock is upholding Ms. LoCicero's decision that construction within the
building footprint is okay.

Ms. Arizaga-Womble clarified with Mr. Craddock he is upholding the decision of Ms.
LoCicero in her letter of determination.

Mr. Johnson said he was satisfied with this clarification.

Chairman Breathwaite continued with the vote and the motion passed unanimously.

RESULT: AFFIRM STAFF'S DECISION [UNANIMOUS]

AYES: Cathy Bontemps, Board Member, Troy Breathwaite, Board Member, Steven
Craddock, Board Member, Lynn L. Hicks, Board Member, Thom Roddy, Board
Member

ABSENT: Gregory Hammer, Board Member

County - Exhibit 1
County - Exhibit 2
Applicant - Exhibit 1
Applicant - Exhibit 2
Waterlily - Exhibit 1

ANNOUNCEMENTS

There were no announcements.

ADJOURNMENT

Chairman Breathwaite asked for a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Hicks motioned to adjourn. Mr. Roddy seconded the motion and the meeting adjourned
at 12:19 AM on April 12, 2019.

Draft Minutes Page 16 Updated 5/24/2019 11:09 AM

Communication: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019 (Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019)

Packet Pg. 18




3.A

Currituck County
Agenda Item Summary Sheet

Agenda ID Number — (ID # 2516)

Agenda Item Title

BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey:

Brief Description of Agenda Item:

Jerry Lindsey with AAPCO & Family Co. is requesting a variance on behalf of the property
owner, Donald Pitts, for a 2 foot encroachment on the required 20 foot setback for a sun room
addition built by SolarTyme, a division of AAPCO. The subject property is located at 135 First
View Way, Tax Map 9E, Parcel 22, Moyock Township.

Board Action Requested
Action
Person Submitting Agenda Item

Cheri Elliott, Assistant

Presenter of Agenda ltem

Laurie LoCicero

Packet Pg. 19




3.Aa

STAFF REPORT
BOA 19-04 AAPO & FAMILY CO.

VARIANCE REQUEST

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
JULY 11, 2019

APPLICATION SUMMARY

. Applicant:
Property Owner: AAPCO & Family Co.
Donald Pitts :
Jerry Lindsey

135 First View Way

Moyock, NC 27958 6710 Jefferson Davis Hwy.

Richmond, VA 23237

Case Number: BOA 17-04 Application Type: Variance

Parcel Identification Number: Existing Use:

009E00000220000 Residential

Parcel Size (Acres): 0.36 Zoning: Single Family Mainland (SFM)

Variance Requested from the Unified Development Ordinance: Section 6.4.4.F Conservation
Subdivision Standards Setbacks. Reduced setback shown on final plat for Moyock Crossing, Phase 1,
Lot 22 Recorded in Plat Cabinet O, Slide 171

STAFF ANALYSIS

The Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) requires lots created in the Single Family Residential-
Mainland district (SFM) to maintain a 25 foot setback from the rear property line. However, the UDO
also states lots in a conservation subdivision shall not be subject to minimum yard setback standards,
except as required from major arterial streets, agricultural uses, or wetlands/surface waters. Section
6.4.4.1 UDO states the agreed upon setbacks for conservation subdivisions shall be shown on the
final subdivision plat in order to assist with the issuance of building permits. The final plat for Moyock
Crossing, Phase 1, Lot 22 shows a required rear yard of 20 feet.

On September 26, 2018 a permit was issued to Solar Tyme, on behalf of the property owner Mr.
Donald Pitts, to construct a 12’ by 16’ sun room addition to the existing dwelling at 135 First View
Way, also known as Lot 22, Phase 1, Moyock Crossing. The site plan originally submitted with the
permit application was denied because the proposed sun room was encroaching into the required 20
foot rear setback. A subsequent site plan was submitted which was approved with the following
conditions:

1. Proposed sunroom and curved patio slab shall maintain required minimum setbacks from all
property lines, including the required 20’ setback from the rear property line.
2. As-Built Survey Required

On March 20, 2019 the required as built survey was submitted showing a 2 foot encroachment into
the required 20’ foot rear setback.

The applicant is requesting a variance from setback shown on the recorded final plat, effectively
reducing the setback to 18 feet.

BOA 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance
Page 1 of 5

Attachment: 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

Packet Pg. 20




3.Aa

VARIANCE REVIEW STANDARDS

A variance shall be approved on a finding that the applicant demonstrates the proposed use

will meet all of the below requirements. It is staff’s opinion that the evidence in the record,
prepared in absence of testimony presented at a public hearing, does not meet all of the

requirements for a variance based on the below preliminary staff findings:

The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of this ordinance.

Preliminary Staff Findings:

1. The alleged hardship is not suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of this
ordinance because the reduced setback of 20 feet was clearly shown on the approved site
plan and conditions were placed on the permit approval clearly indicating the potential for
encroachment and requiring an as-built survey prior to issuance of the certificate of
compliance.

Applicant Findings:
1. The applicant did not supply any findings for this review standard.

The hardship relates to the applicant’s land, such as location, size, or topography rather than personal
circumstances.

Preliminary Staff Findings:

1. The hardship does not relate to the applicants land. There is nothing about the location
size, or topography of the land that would warrant the encroachment. The lot is of a similar
size to other lots in the subdivision and the required setbacks were clearly known at the
time of permitting.

Applicant Findings:
1. Please see attached email from Jerry Lindsey.

The hardship is unique, or nearly so, rather than one shared by many surrounding properties.

Preliminary Staff Findings:
1. The hardship is not unique because most of the lots in the subdivision are similar in size
and share the same 20 foot rear setback.

Applicant Findings:
1. The applicant did not submit any findings for this review standard.

The hardship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions.

Preliminary Staff Findings:

1. The hardship is a result of the applicant’'s own actions because setbacks were known
before application for a building permit, the encroachment was shown and denied on the
original site plan, and the applicant failed to take the necessary steps to ensure the sun
room could meet the setbacks prior to construction.

Applicant Findings:
1. The applicant did not submit any findings for this review standard.
BOA 19-04 Jerry Lindsey

Variance
Page 2 of 5

Attachment: 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

Packet Pg. 21




3.Aa

The variance will not authorize the initiation of a honconforming use of land; and

Preliminary Staff Findings:
1. The variance will not authorize the initiation of a nonconforming use of land.

Applicant Findings:
1. The applicant did not submit any findings for this review standard.

The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this ordinance, such that
public safety is secured, and substantial justice is achieved.

Preliminary Staff Findings:
1. The requested variance is not consistent with the spirit, purpose, and intent of this
ordinance because:

a. The request does not meet any of the above review standards.

b. The applicant was warned of the potential dangers of proposing a structure directly on
the setback line. Once when the original site plan was denied, and once when the
revised site plan was approved.

c. The applicant was aware, prior to construction, that an as-built survey would be
required to verify compliance with the required setback.

d. There is nothing unique about the property that would justify the need for a variance.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends denial of the variance subject to the following factors:

a. The variance request does not meet the required review standards.

Attachment: 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

BOA 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance
Page 3 of 5

Packet Pg. 22




PB 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance Request
Aerial

PB 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance Request
Zoning

3.Aa

Currituck County
Planning and

Attachment: 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

Currituck County
Planning and

BOA 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance
Page 4 of 5

Packet Pg. 23




PB 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance Request
LUP

3.Aa

Currituck County
Planning and

THE APPLICATION AND RELATED MATERIALS ARE AVAILABLE ON THE COUNTY’S WEBSITE
Board of Adjustment: www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-adjustment-minutes-current.cfm

Attachment: 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

BOA 19-04 Jerry Lindsey
Variance
Page 50f 5

Packet Pg. 24



http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/board-of-adjustment-minutes-current.cfm

3.Ab I

OFFICIAL USE ONLY: \
L4 Qse Number: 4 - Q ;
Variance are Fibet m@mﬁ:‘; ‘

Application Octe Keeper: RS

Amount Paid: &5 /e -

I Contact Information I
APPLICANT: ﬁj@f’Co $ Family (e, PROPERTY OWNER:
Name: tr Ll ’\ oA se ‘] Name: DQ}UA/(J é anﬂ\/ecd p)-f75
Address: Vi ] Jcﬂﬂcrépu Dasvis fhevy  Address: wﬂs'f— Vyew
Rootragrd_a - 33757 Mosocic N.C. 2795 §
Telephone: g0« - 27/- 2500 Telephone: 57-573 - ool
Fax Number: 8O0 -1 —H3C Fax Number: LA

E-MoiAddress: SR B §O4-332-930 2 Epail Address:

LEGAL RELATIONSHIP OF APPLICANT TO PROPERTY OWNER: &Mfaééfoi'\

I Preperty Information I

Physical Street Address: ,65— FrrsY Ve /“IOQﬁCK M, a 2795
ﬂocaﬁon: Mt)uodb CRDSS\% Cufr (+UC‘C GOU(\"—(/{

Parcel Identification Number[s), 407 2 l/ 0{) 0' E ()O 00 b‘kQ < Qo\
(Yot~ TO ¥
Ijequesf N~ / I

1, T&yu,\i*— deﬂfl\'@@r\ P"H3 hereby request a variance from Section(s) )/ /7/ 65 /53ﬂ 36,2# the

Unified Development Ordinance.

Provide a narrative of why the variance Is needed and what circumstances have lead to the need for a

varionce:
lzAse  Qee.  Cp 8)e g

~. G B S AN,

Variance Apphcation
Paga3of7

Attachment: 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19) (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry

Revised 71172018

Packet Pg. 25




4/4/2019 Gmail - Pitts 205308 3ADb

»
M Gmail Charity McPherson <charitycme@gmail.com:

Pitts 205308

1 message

Jerry Lindsey <jerrylindsey.aapco@gmail.com>
To: Charity <charitycme@gmail.com>

Tue, Apr 2, 2019 at 3:51 P

Note, all references to locations on room are viewed from back yard facing home.
This room was was issued a building permit ,and built,
It was noted on plan as built site survey was required.
We ( contractor ) did pull measurements before applying for permit and fully believed we were within the proper setback
reguirments.

Unfortunately at final inspection it was brought to our attention about

the as built survey. When complying with ths request we found that the measurement to the right outer comer did
encroach approximately 2 feet in a triangular shape.

That brings us to this point where we need to apply for a varience for the 2 foot corner .

{ would also like to note that we did change the location of sunroom where homeowner originally wanted and installed it
as close to rear entry door to main home as possible.

Attachment: 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19) (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry

https:#/mail.google.com/mailiu/07ik=2518a5{6d1&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A 1629733067 123364557 &simpl=msg-1%3 Packet Pg. 26




3.Ab

Relevant Factors for lssuance of a Variance

A variance may be granted by the Board of Adjustment if it concludes that strict enforcement of the
ordinence would result in practicol difficulties or vnnecessary hardships for the applicant and thot, by
granting the variance, the spirit of the ordinance will be observed, public safety and welfare secured,
and substantial justice done. It may reach these conclusions if it makes detailed written findings that:

A,

The alleged hardship is suffered by the applicant as a result of the application of the Ordinance,
{Vorionces con no! be gronted if the hardship is the result of resfrictions ofher fthon those of the ordinance; restrictive
covenants ore on example).

2 l

N

The hordship relotes to the applicant’s {and, such as location, size, or topography, rather than
personal clrcumstances. (Hordships suffered by the applicant should be the result of facfors directly related the
applicant’s fand and not ardinance requirements).

St affoched Gllc dudied SJepo Cioe Sottg Liodke,

The hardship is unique, or neorly so, rother thon one shored by mony surrounding properties.
(Hardships suffered by the applicant in common with neighbors does not justify a variance, the proper remedy is not a
variance, but rather an amendment of the ordinance. Courls have held thai a board's granfing o variance based on such
factors amounts fo dn affempfed usurpation of legisiofive power).

i

The hordship is not the result of the applicant’s own actions. (Where o property owner has either knowlingly
or unknowingly violated the ordinance by eracling a forbidden siruchwe, he/fshe cannot cite expenses as o hordship,
oltherwise no ons would aver comply with the ardinance. Similarly, when a person buys property ond certoin restrictions
exist, he/she cannot be soid to suffer hardship if those resiriclions are enforced; such hardship would be self imposed).

;s

The variance will not suthorize the initiation of a nonconforming use of land. (Stote facts ond argumens
fo show thot #he vorionce raquested represents the least possible deviation from the lefler of the ordinonce thet will aflow o
reasonable use of the land and that the use of the property, if the variance is granted will not create o new ronconformity).

el

i3

Variance Application
Page 4 of

Revised 71112016

Attachment: 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19) (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry

Packet Pg. 27




3.Ab

i, the undersigned, do certify that all of the information presented in this opplication is accurate to the
best of my knowledge, information, and belief.

Further, | hereby authorize county officials to enter my property for purposes of determining zoning
compliance, All information submitted and required as part of this application precess shall become

publjc rec
ot 0bw/o019

Date

*NOTE: Form must be sighed by the owner(s) of record, contract purchaser(s), or other person(s) having o

recognized property interest. If there are muliiple property owners/applicants a signature is required for
edach,

I Owner Verification I

If the person who is requesting the Board of Adjustment to take action on a particular piece of
property is not the owner of the property, or under contract to purchase, then the actual owner of the

land must complete this section. If the owner is the appellant /application please do not complete this
section.

Dear Sir or Madame:

| urnithe owner of the property located at /\.)):) H'ﬁS"‘ l/i'e(,s.) m""l y mo?}l&&',/lt’

5 .
I hereby authorize _Loest- \Jaluo RSotnodlers o Solanty me
to appear with my consent before the Board of Adjustment in ordero request a variance at the
above location. | understand that a variance, if granted, is permanent and runs with the land. |
authorize you to advertise and present this matter in my name as the owner of the property.

If you have any questions, you may contact me at the following at the address, phone number, or
email address listed on this application.

Respectfully yours,
42a

Sworn to and subscribed before me, this the  day of A'.On l ,2029.

Owner Date

r

-/“: ?4 g @g 2!:“5;'“.!
Notéfry Pdblic

My commission expires: (2 </ [l I 2022

Tiffany Lynette Hudgins
Commonweaith of Virginia
Notary Public
&/ Commission No, 7807960
Eames” My Commission Expires 513172022

Vanance Applcalion
Page 50l 7

Attachment: 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19) (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry

Revizad 7112018

Packet Pg. 28




(Respuin Auiar - "00 Ajilwed 2 0DdVY ¥0-6T YO4g) A8AINS)|Ingsy "€ -luswyoeny

~

; . . I
S .

3.A.c

VAITOEYD HIHON _ ANAOD AOLEENT HHSNHDL HIOADR
AVM MIA L1SHlT SEIF
It 18 0 DT 't ISYHI ONISSOND NIOLOW & 10T

Sitiltd NIFTHLVY OGNV GTVNOJ
MOT ANMAS 1 WG-S5V OF = 1 WIS

W05 THHABAIIIEOUOLI[10{LLIY MMM
wossifufoyl oN-3
000L-92F (252} euoyd
ﬁnm&.d F HOATAYNS GNYT TYNOISSIHOU

PYBLE ON GHO4DNAH
133818 I3MEYH 601

ONUINGNS ONYT
o YITHW HT

WO = gor ) FPOGIN YIGHN 1231084 BLACQ 6102 Fvd
% i ANTHINVS £ ITF
or o aF BT INTHESYT - ~ =~ = = e e -
FWIS IHIVED IQEL 0 S BUY FOVHNOD LT+ A T T T
AOTUIY NHOHS SV NOULVINGHONGH OHcH MO AFSYE ST AAHNS Sl « INIT ALLTHOR ONNVIY'GY wom — —— —
INIT AV A0 LRI —_
GNIOYS THUNOZINOK SFONYLSIG TIY COHLIN VNG00 AT V3oV  + 3NTT AL MTAOL S
stz 207 IVAH @
D4 FOHVH SRLYAOD ONSILY/ cllitl, WRLSAS NOLVRMOAN XSIH (00TI AT Lo &
FHL HOUT GINIVLE0 SV NOLVHSOHN GOOTS 3Sva NFNTHL 033G ) At oy o X
SV L000T FONVHD TWIINY XZ0 A0 FOSN0 78 0f GINREELIT STV, 0
X FNOZ NI S3IT ALMFH0N THI 502 1 HE3ENE03] 0TI QoY NOYl ONRCA L)
G Vd 2208 TINV REOOLE ON OF ALINGHADD MOOZZOFIZLE YFGMIN UPN O¥H e/
VI AINNCD XIS dod Wl Q1 INGS0OOV VEYY TYYZVH o0l
WANTdS TILILNOI VHET ¥ NI GLiVoaT 38 O Hviddy 5300 1Vl
St MO T2 VINITFT AL HT0MHS IHE A TVG ONILIOTS JIHAVED M2ON GFsYs *

4L TS 0 D'd KoM NI F

© NOSMTH NHOHS SINTHISYI GNP SYIVELTS  ONIO3Y A0 SINVNZI02 ANV

ONY FONVARTED DNINGZ AINGOD HorLlIRInD AG HINGS L3S SININZYINGIS
INFHESYI NV HIVELIS TIV Of LOF'E0S 51 ALdFedOdd Sidd »

Ekm&mmw\kkumbigxﬁ /
STONVYGRIONT 29 SKOUDIISTY SINGNISVT TV LST1H3H TON AV ONV
THOLTH FUL ¥ AT LEINGE SHE INOHIIM CINAIATS Sl AAMIS ikl «

/ mhﬁwoauaﬁn: /
: AVl HIH 25T SEd
Sttt NFTHIVS GNY TTINDG SLINKAO ALUToONS LNTHITD  *

N WFN TULYNOS TYNIDIRO AW SSINLM

A R

HISHH MINTY g - \\\
ONIGIOITY H0S SINTTUNOTY AHOLALVLS
IV SIZH Gy St NOLYILHTD St HOIM g,
O T D o o sy LoD, ZANDGD MRS o oy Ty LIRULS INUSIT NV FONVHD 40 LTRUS MIN ¥ I VTHO LON

S B K o, SHOT GNY TNYT 40 STV S0 T2V ONUSIET NY A0

S S 1Y, SI ABAMAS 3HE IVHL AHNFO OSTY o MITIN HY 1

JIWI5 O 10N i T Rl N NI S Oots 5D HLH
g & . & _

AW ALINIOU I acey=1 A% ZONVQUHOIDY M Vel SYA LV SHL LVHL

£ i P _ TITASTE ST ‘SR (6

T i BES i 3 TETITT SO CENEI0D (8

ALY~ S s F . B ORS SHooN 4039 (£

% S Qigsadt S & TSI 50 WOMINGD QI [/ OIS (9

7 g resaien T & GO TIoEES, OFN — O ON Ho0d7 /S Hva (%

#; g
%o, TO8y Dy B BT T THVINEII IS A0 2vE (#
NI FHAIRO08S T3 509 40 Fdld (¢
SHHITWIENGI=E AIVHOOY TYNOUSOS (2
VIR dnuns & ssvo (1
RIS (SNOUYTIIUSNGD TV SSNO SHE WA Of 83507 SYH MU YNNI ONMOTIOS FHE
GNY AANNS (559) WIISIS ONINOLISOS T} JHE VL 000011 S GIVYINITND SV AVENIV
TNOUISOL MO NOISIOFUS A0 OUYY 3K LVHI  (STUON N STONFNZLIY TWNOLKOaY 335) .M OMIOS
NOLL FASOING NS KUY SY A2 VIION ATMVIID JFHY QY STNIT Q3HSYT SV NHOHS 39 Q331905
10N SFNYONGOE FHI VR TF D FEIRL B0 MOMS NOISUMTAIS A NIGNT JOVHY AZAM08 TWrdavy
N FDME NOSRYIAIE AN MITNT NRVNG SHH JYTE SIHL LYHL ANF0 ST "3 SFTH HI 1

SEION /
Y0628 3
SFPZYEEZOL N
OO0S 2000003500 M
if: 0 O Al '
g
A N,
3 o
@
Ny d
ONITTHE
vy :
sEir o
Sl N 52 996628 3
£85 1 kol 5 67 TEZEC W
= ;o
G VAN ~
CO00ZZ000003500 VA 2 NG
VER s YA A S N
ce 107 &S ¢ x
&/ a § g
.)\ A .J~ w
/ ﬁ%. Sz
.3 BE
.é‘!). . \ H W .....m
AR / 000050000003600
~ p @l . e od
~{, % g I07
- " ¥
3 .46 .55.0 5| o565 | oz0zEs | .oovs | miee | 10 ﬁm y mmwm *@ ; 9
NOUDINIG | QNOHD | VIR0 - | SnOvY | HIDNIT | 3D 175 0 3 ®
E 107 l M
Fgvi INMTD

y

s

e

Packet Pg. 29




Resend08-13-18:08: 33AM; AAPCO-L i felong Coatings

QC S g C f 17574992447

3.Ad

# 6/ 9

RECORD NORTH

BOOK "07. PG N

OPEN SPACE #1

P WATER VALVE
x 12,34 EXISTING ELEV.
x 12,34 PROPOSED REV.

NOTES:

1. NQ TILE REPORT FURNISHED.
2. THIS PROPERTY IS IN ZONE *
ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE

b on

O‘%
{o’b
DRAINAGE & |
UTILITY
stum'r | O
-
~—
Sa
™ a

.
10/01

} CURRITUEK COUNTY

Permit Number

PLANNI

AND INSPECTIONS
~/ Site PlanfReview

20180208t
d As Is

d As Noted
Resubmit

O sApprov]
Approv|
Denied

018 &

Date

Planning

7/ UTIITY EASEMENT
4
DRAINAGE &
UTILITY EASEMENT {
™
\\
4 \
/ \
DRAINAGE 2
UTILITY EASEMENT e
@  WATER METER
@ sAN. CLEANOUT
@  CONST. ENTRANCE

OUTSIDE THE 0.2% CHANCE ANNUAL FLOOD), AS SHOWN
GURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA. COMMUNITY PANEL

NQ, 37218031, EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 16, 2005.

DRAINAGE &

L CARDINAL
Q'hunvey & DOSWInS
e firiy i /" =

373A CARATOKE HIGHWAY
MQYQ‘ICz. NORTH CAROLINA 27855
{282) 821-5080

45
HOUSE GRADING PLAN
LOT 22
MOYOCK CROSSING
PHASE 1
MOYOCK TOWNSHIF
CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA

Attachment: 4. 135 FIRST VIEW - INITIAL STIE PLAN (DENIED) (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

Packet Pg. 30



dlashomb
Typewritten Text
Proposed
curved 
patio slab (144 sf)

dlashomb
Text Box
201802085

dlashomb
Denied / Resubmit

dlashomb
Oval


Resend08-13-18;08: 33AM; AAPCO-L i felong Coatings

REGORD HORTH % ©%,  CURRITUCK COUNTY
0 PLANNING AND INSPECTIONS
ROOK 0", PG 17T fb &> site Plan Review
{9 Permit Number
» O Approved As Is
\\ DRAINAGE 4 Approved As Noted
OFEN SPACE #1 - o 25, @EL&B‘ITD Denied / Rgguignit
) o ’G'G;- 23/2018 &% iagjkw,n,
\0,\;5 y"t‘ ) Dé'fe-,\ Plannmg'/
S
& - P & d dpati I’b hall
N e o, e
PR >ANS 27 7] O S
W,
; - ™~N\AS-BUIL \
- b ‘5\ % ) -1 16.00 _fFropos d é? M .::: ~ EE) Lwr s
.‘s‘.‘p \@’ ) / p“w z curved &EQUIR
45 ¥ y Sunroon” —fpatiosla g‘s:;)o ?Ong ~ T
> '»Gg" 8.3 2000 g /’lj;' - 5
L .
K5 = . 18.712 8
A &R~ ey T RGN i //\
N\ ¢ . ELEV @} SILT FENCE % £
G S e a | odToReANce § /
N ) g 35 0 6,604 S.F. ./
i \ '-b% g ’ o /
) - Pl /
‘:I
\\ “"4 2 N3 14,005 | R"";’ gt & g 7 L
i STOQ! .
\ gx 8.30|x g GAR- & &/
20.00;
N\ % . T
ores \ Ry T oNe h"““'\/ A /
ORIVE || A
e [ >
I ——t £ /
DRAINAGE & @
UMLITY EASEMENT b SIS A% s /
2) 2A
P SN
&
/ L:u Op « o \
/ S \
/ 8,11 \
DRAINAGE & FIRST VIEW WAY
UTILITY EASEMENT X 50" R/W
& WATER METER .
@  SAN. CLEANOUT
® CONST. ENTRANCE

P4 WATER VALVE
x 1234 EXISTING ELEV.
x 12,34 PROPOSED ELEV,

NOTES:
1. NQ TWLE REPORT FURNISHED.

S : S g C f 1 7574982447

3.A.e

# 6/ 9

2. THIS PROPERTY IS IN ZONE "
ON THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE

AREA QUTSIDE THE 0.2% CHANCE ANNUAL FLOOD), AS SHOWN
FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA. COMMUNITY PANEL

NO, 37218031, EFFECTIVE DATE DECEMBER 16, 20D5.

 CARD HOUSE GRADING PLAN e
- nvovai%lukwu LDT 22 Scanned !::/.u Lld
’uumm-san Vo MOYOCK CROSS|NG documentot Tty
PHASE 1 to scale DYO BY!
13734 CARATOKE HIGHWAY 2.5)
¥ MOYOCK TOWNSHIF TR
e CURRITUCK COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA gl

Attachment: 5. 135 FIRST VIEW - NEW! UPDATED SITE PLAN TO MEET SETBACK (BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey)

Packet Pg. 31



dlashomb
Line

dlashomb
Line

dlashomb
Text Box
Scanned document not to scale

dlashomb
Line

dlashomb
Typewritten Text
16.00'

dlashomb
Typewritten Text
12.00'

dlashomb
Typewritten Text
Proposed
curved 
patio slab (144 sf)

dlashomb
Typewritten Text
Sunroom


dlashomb
Typewritten Text
Proposed

dlashomb
Approved As Noted

dlashomb
Text Box
201802085

dlashomb
As Built

dlashomb
Oval

dlashomb
Text Box
Proposed sunroom and curved patio slab shall maintain required minimum setbacks from all property lines, including the required 20' setback from rear property line. 

dlashomb
Line


	Agenda Packet
	I. Call to Order - 7:00 PM
	A. Roll Call
	B. Announce Quorum Being Met
	C. Approval of Agenda
	D. Approval of Minutes for April 11, 2019
	BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019
	Attachment: BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019


	E. Ask for Disqualifications

	II. Old Business
	III. New Business
	A. BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey
	Printout: BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey
	a. 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report
	b. 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19)
	c. 3. AsBuiltSurvey
	d. 4. 135 FIRST VIEW - INITIAL STIE PLAN (DENIED)
	e. 5. 135 FIRST VIEW - NEW! UPDATED SITE PLAN TO MEET SETBACK


	Announcements
	Adjournment

	Appendix
	BOA Meeting Minutes - April 11, 2019
	3.A · BOA 19-04 AAPCO & Family Co. - Jerry Lindsey
	3.A.a · 1. Jerry Lindsey staff report
	3.A.b · 2. 19-04 Jerry Lindsey - AAPCO & Family Co. - Variance - Application (BOA 6-13-19)
	3.A.c · 3. AsBuiltSurvey
	3.A.d · 4. 135 FIRST VIEW - INITIAL STIE PLAN (DENIED)
	3.A.e · 5. 135 FIRST VIEW - NEW! UPDATED SITE PLAN TO MEET SETBACK



